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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT A B
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 5

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,
V.

TOP SHELF MARKETING CORP., a New Jersey
corporation,

RELIABLE BUSINESS CONSULTANTS, LLC,
also doing business as ONLINE COMMERCE
PROS, a New York Iimited liability company,

CREATIVE BUSINESS SETUP, LLC, a Utah
limited liability company,

LEGAL ENTITY PROVIDERS, LLC, a Utah
limited liability company,

POWER HOUSE DATA INC., a New Jersey
corporation,

UNITED BUSINESS 101, LLC, a New York
limited liability company,

VIXOUS MERCHANT SERVICES, LLC, also
doing business as VIXOUS PAYMENTS, a Utah
limited liability company, and KEYBANCARD,
LLC, as a successor limited liability company,

ANTHONY FIORE, individually and as an officer
and owner of RELIABLE BUSINESS
CONSULTANTS, LLC and POWER HOUSE
DATA, INC. and as an officer of TOP SHELF
MARKETING CORP.,

JOSEPH GOVERNARA, also known as JOE
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STIPULATED ORDER FOR
PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND
MONETARY JUDGMENT AS TO
DEFENDANTS (1) RELIABLE
BUSINESS CONSULTANTS, LLC,
(2) CREATIVE BUSINESS SETUP,
LLC, (3) LEGAL ENTITY
PROVIDERS, LLC, (4) POWER
HOUSE DATA, INC., (5) UNITED
BUSINESS 101, LLC, (6)
ANTHONY FIORE, (7) JOSEPH
GOVERNARA, AND (8) DAVID
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MORRIS, individually and as owner of UNITED
BUSINESS 101 and an officer and owner of
RELIABLE BUSINESS CONSULTANTS, LLC,

RYAN HULT, individually and as an officer and
owner of TOP SHELF MARKETING CORP. and a
principal of RELIABLE BUISNESS
CONSULTANTS, LLC,

DAVID MERHI, individually and as an officer and
owner of CREATIVE BUSINESS SETUP LLC,
owner of LEGAL ENTITY PROVIDERS, LLC,
officer of TOP SHELF MARKETING CORP., and
principal of RELIABLE BUSINESS
CONSULTANTS, LLC, and

‘DAVID VANKOMEN, individually and as a
principal of VIXQOUS MERCHANT SERVICES,
LLC,

Defendants.

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“Commission” or “FTC”), filed its Compiaint
for Permanent Injunction and Other Equitable Relief (“Complaint”), pursuant to Sections 13(b)
and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act™), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b. The
Commission and Defendants Reliable Business Consultants, LLC, Creative Business Setup, LLC,
Legal Entity Providers, LLC, Power House Data, Inc., United Business 101, LLC, Anthony Fiore,
Joseph Governara, and David Merhi (“Settling Defendants”) stipulate to the entry of this
Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction and Monetary Judgment (“Order™) to resolve all
matters in dispute in this action between them.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED as follows:
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FINDINGS
1. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter.
2. The Complaint charges that Settling Defendants participated in deceptive acts or practices

in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, and the FTC’s .trade regulation rule
entitled Telemarketing Sales Rule (“TSR*), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, in the operation of a
telemarketing scheme offering consumers purported business development services and products
and utilizing sham arrangements with shell companies to gain unauthorized access to credit card

processing services.

3. Settling Defendants neither admit nor deny any of the allegations in the Complaint, except

4. Settling Defendaﬁts waive any claim that they may have under the Equal Access to Justice
Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412, concerning the prosecution of this action through the date of this Order,
and agree to bear their own costs and attorney fees.
3 Settling Del.fcndants and the Commission waive all rights to appeal or otherwise challenge
or contest tﬁe validity of this Order.
DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions apply:

A. “ACH Debit” means any completed or attempted debit to a Person’s account at a
financial institution that is processed electronically through the Automated Clearing House
Network.

B. “Acquirer” means a business organization, financial institution, or an agent of a
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business organization or financial institution that has authority from an organization that operates
or licenses a credit card system (e.g. Visa, MasterCard, American Express, and Discover) to
authorize Merchants to accept, transmit, or process payment by credit card through the credit card
system for money, goods or services, or anything else of value.

C “Business Coaching Services” means any product or servicé, including any
program or plan, that is represented, expressly or by implication, to train or teach a consumer how
to establish, operate, or improve a business.

D. “Chargeback” means a procedqre whereby an issuing bank or other financial
institution charges all or part of an amount of a Person’s credit or debit card transaction back to
the acquiring or merchant bank.

E. “Corporate Defendants™ means Reliable Business Consultants, LLC, also doing
business as Online Commerce Pros; Creative Business Setup, LLC; Legal Entity Providers, LLC;
Power House Data, Inc.; and United Business 101, LLC, and their successors and assigns.

F. “Credit Card Laundering” means:

(a)  Presenting or depositing into, or causing or allowing another to present or
deposit into, the credit card system for payment, a Credit Card Sales Draft generated by a
transaction that is not the result of a credit card transaction between the cardholder and the
Merchant;

(b)  Employing, soliciting, or otherwise causing or allowing a Merchant, or an
employee, representative, or agent of a Merchant, to present to or deposit into the credit card
system for payment, a Credit Card Sales Draft generated by a tmnlsaction that is not the result of a

credit card transaction between the cardholder and the Merchant; or
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(¢)  Obtaining access to the credit card system through the use of a business
relationship or an affiliation with a Merchant, when such access is not authorized by the Merchant

Account agreement or the applicable credit card system.

G. “Credit Card Sales Draft” means any record or evidence of a credit card
transaction.
H. “Customer Information of a Financial Institution” shall have the same meaning

as set out in Section 6827(2) of the Gramm Leach Bliley Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6827.

L. “Individual Defendants” means Anthony Fiore, Joseph Governara, also known as
Joe Morris, Ryan Hult, and David Merhi. |

L. “Merchant” means a Person who is authorized under a written contract with an
Acquirer to honor or accept credit cards, or to transmit or process for payment credit card
payments, for the purchase of good or services.

K. “Merchant Account” means an account with an Acquirer that authorizes and
allows a Merchant to honor or accept credit cards, or to transmit or process for payment credit
card payments, for the purchase of goods or services or a charitable contribution.

i “Payment Processing” means providing a Person, directly or indirectly, with the
means used to charge or debit accounts through the use of any payment mechanism, inclu.ding,
but not limited to, Remotely Created Payment Orders, Remotely Created Checks, ACH Debits, or
debit, credit, prepaid, or stored value cards. Whether accomplished through the use of software
or otherwise, Payment Processing includes, .among other things: (a) reviewing and approving
merchant applications for payment processing services; (b) providing the means to transmit sales
transaction data from merchants to acquiring banks or other financial institutions; (c) clearing,
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settling, or distributing proceeds of sales transactions from acquiring banks or financial
institutions to merchants; or (d) processing Chargebacks or returned Remotely Created Payme.nt
Orders, Remotely Created Checks, or ACH Debits.

M.  “Person” means any natural person or any entity, corporation, partnership, or
association of persons.

N. “Remotely Created Check’” means a check that is not created by the paying bank
and that does not bear a signature applied, or purported to be appl iéd, by the Person on whose
financial account the check is drawn. A remotely created check is often referred to as a “demand
draﬁ," “telephone check,” or “preauthorized draft.” For purposes of this definition, a Remotely
Created Check originates as a paper-based transaction, but can be processed subsequently through
electronic means (such as through checking imaging or scanning) or through non-electronic means.

0. “Remotely Created Payment Order” means a payment instruction or order drawn .
on a Person’'s financial account that is initiated or created by the payee and that does not bear a
signature applied, or purported to be applied,.by the Person on whose financial account the order is
drawn, and which is deposited into or cleared through the check clearing system. For purposes of
this definition, unlike a Remotely Created Check, a Remotely Created Payment Order does naot
originate as a paper-based transaction. A Remotely Created Payment Order is created when a
payee directly or indirectly enters financial account and routing numbers into an electronic check
template thgt is converted into an electronic file for deposit into the check clearing system.

P. “Settling Defendants” means all of the Individual Defendants and the Corporate
Defendants, individually, collectively, or in any combination. '

Q. “Telemarketing” means any plan, program, or campaign which is conducted to

Page 6 of 23



Case 1:16-cv-00206-JSR Document 12 Filed 01/29/16 Page 7 of 37

induce the purchase of goods or services by use of one or more telephones, and which involves a
telephone call, whether or not covered by the Telemarketing Sales Rule.

R. “Work-at-Home Opportunity” means any product or service, including any
program or plan, that is represented, expressly or by implication, to assist a consumer in any
manner to earn money while working from home.

ORDER
L

BAN ON MARKETING OR SALE OF BUSINESS COACHING
SERVICES AND WORK-AT-HOME OPPORTUNITIES

IT IS ORDERED that Settling Defendants are permanently restrained and enjoined from:

A. Advertising, marketing, promoting, or offering for sale, or assisting in the
advgnisin g, marketing, promoting, or offering for sale of any (1) Businessl Coaching Service, (2)
Work-at-Home Opportunity, or (3) service to assist in the creation, advertising, marketing, or
promotion of a Work-At-Home Opportunity, including, but not limited to, business entity
formation, corporate document filing, bookkeeping services, business plans, market research,
business credit development, marketing strategies, and website building; and

B. Holding an ownership interest, share, or stock in any business, other than a
publicly traded company, that engages in or assists in advertising, marketing, promoting, or
offering for sale of any (1) Business Coaching Service, (2) Work-at-Home Opportunity, or (3)
service to assist in the creation, advertising, marketing, or promotion of a Work-At-Home
Opportunity, including, but not limited to, business entity formation, corporate document filing,

bookkeeping services, business plans, market research, business credit development, marketing
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strategies, and website building.
1I.
PROHIBITED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants, Settling Defendants’ officers,
agents, employees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any
of them, who receive actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly or ind ill-ectly, are
permanently restrained and enjoined from:

A. Making, or assisting others in making, directly or by implication, any false or
misleading statement about Settling Defendants’ identity, purpose, or right to receive Customer
Information of a Financial Institution; .and

B. Making, or assisting others in making, directly or by implication, any false or
misleading statement in order to obtain Payment Processing services.

HI.
PROHIBITION AGAINST CREDIT CARD LAUNDERING
1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants, Settling Defendants’ officers, agents,
employees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of
them, who receive actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly or indirectly, in connection
with a Merchant Account are permanently restrained and enjoined from Credit Card Laundering.
Iv.
PROHIBITIONS RELATING TO TELEMARKETING PRACTICES
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants, Settling Defendants’ officers,

agents, employees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any
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of them, who receive actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly or indirectly, in
connection with Telemarketing of_ any good or service, are permanently restrained and enjoined
from:

A. Failing to disclose truthfully, promptly, and in a clear and conspicuous manner: (1)
the identity of the seller; (2) that the purpose of the call is to sell goods or services; and (3) the
nature of those goods or services; and

B. Violating any provision of the TSR. (A copy of the TSR is attached as
Attachment A.)

V.
PROHIBITIONS AGAINST MISREPRESENTATIONS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants, Settling Defendants’ officers,
agents, employees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any
of them, who receive actual notice of this Order; whether acting directly or indirectly, in
connection with promoting or offering for sale any good or service other than those banned by‘
Section I of this Order, are permanently restrained and enjoined from misrepresenting or assisting
others in misrepresenting, expressly or by implication:

A. The cost of any product or service;

B. Any material restriction, limitation, or condition on the product or service;

C. Any material aspect of the nature or terms of any refund, cancellation, exchange,
or repurchase policy for the product or service; and

D. Any material aspect of the performance, efficacy, nature, or central characteristics

of the product or service.
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VL
MONETARY JUDGMENT AND PARTIAL SUSPESION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A. Judgment in the amount of SIXTEEN MILLION DOLLARS ($16,000,000) is
entered in favor of the Commission against the Settling Defendants, jointly and severally, as
equitable monetary relief. Upon payments and transfer of all assets specified in Subsections B
through E below, the remainder of the judgment is suspended, subject to Subsections F through H
below.

B. In partial satisfaction of the monetary judgment set forth above, Individual
Defendant Merhi is ordered to pay to the Commission Three Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars
($350,000). Such payment must be made by electronic funds transfer in accordance with
instructions provided by a representative of the Commission, as follows: payment of $175,000,
which, as Individual Defendant Merhi stipulates, his undersigned counsel holds in escrow for no
other purpose other than payment to the Commission, within 7 days of entry of this Order; and
payment in the amount of $175,000 within 60 days of entry of this Order.

C. In partial satisfaction of the monetary judgment set forth above, [ndividual
Defendant Fiore is ordered to pay One Hundred and Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($175,000).
Such payment must be made by electronic funds transfer in accordance with instructions provided
by a representative of the Commission, as follows: payment of $75,000, which, as Individual
Defendant Fiore stipulates, his undersigned counsel holds in escrow for no other purpose other
than payment to the Commission, within 7 days of entry of this Order; and payment in the amount

of $100,000 within 60 days of entry of this Order.
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D. In partial satisfaction of the monetary judgment set forth above, Individual
Defendant Governara is ordered to pay One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000), which, as
Individual Defendant Governara stipulates, his undersigned counsel holds in escrow for no other

_purpose other than payment to the Commission. Such payment must be made within 7 days of
entry of this Order by electronic fund transfer in accordance with instructions provided by a
representative of the Commission.

E. [n partial satisfaction of the monetary judgment set forth above, the Settling
Defendants shall relinquish and assign to Plaintiff FTC all right, title, and interests in the funds
held in the reserve accounts maintained in connection with the merchant accounts in the name of
any Settling Defendant, Business Entity Solutions, Business 314, LLC, Creative Entity Setup,
Distribution Logistics, LLC, Online Corporate Services, LLC, Startup Systems Online LLC, and
United Entity Solutions, including but not limited to the following accounts at Secure Bancard,
LLC (*Secure Bancard™) and Successful Data Systems, Inc. (“SDS”):

| Business 314, LLC account ending in 0800 (Secure Bancard);

2, Creative Entity Setup, LLC account ending in 0304 (Secure Bancard);

3. Legal Entity Providers, LLC account ending in 0544 (Secure Bancard);

4. Power House Data account ending in 0088 (Secure Bancard);

5. Reliable Business Consultants, LLC account ending in 0715 (Secure
Bancard);

6. Startup Systems Online, LLC account ending in 0770 (Secure Bancard);

7. United Business 101, LLC account ending in 0477 (Secure Bancard);

8. United Entity Solutions account in 0124 (Secure Bancard);
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9. Business Entity Solutions accounts ending in 1420 and 3595 (SDS);
10.  Distributions Logistics LLC accounts ending in 1385 and 3082 (SDS); and
11.  Online Corporate Services accounts ending in 1330 and 9767 (SDS).

F. The Commission’s agreement to the suspension of part of the judgment is
expressly premised upon the truthfulness, accuracy, and completeness of Defendants’ sworn
financial statements and related documents (collectively, “financial representations™) gubmitted to
the Commission, namely:

I the Financial Statement of Individual Defendant Merhi signed on
September 22, 2015, includiﬁg the attachments;

2. the Financial Statement of [ndividual Defendant Fiore signed on August
18, 2015, including the attachments;

3. the Financial Statement of Individual Defendant Governara signed on
August 7, 2015, including the attachments;

4, the Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant Legal Entity Providers
signed by David Merhi on August 14, 2015, including the attachments;

- the Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant Creative Business Setup
signed by David Merhi on August 14, 2015, including the attachments;

6. the Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant Power House Data, Inc.
signed by Anthony Fiore, President on August 18, 2015, including the attachments;

7. the Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant Reliable Business
Consultants LLC signed by Anthony Fiore on August 18, 2015, including the attachments; and

8. the additional documentation submitted by email dated September 22,
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2015, from Defendants’ counsel Alexandra Megaris to Commission counsel, attaching Form W-2
Statements for David Merhi and the Merhi Family Irrevocable Trust documents.

G. The suspension of the judgment will be lifted as to any Settling Defendant if, upon
motion by the Commission, the Court finds that the Settling Defendant failed to disclose any
material asset, materially misstated the value of any asset, or made any other material
misstatement or omission in the financial representations identified above.

H. If the suspensicn of the judgment is lifted, the judgment becomes immediately due
as to that Settling Defendant in the amount specified in Subsection A above (which the parties
stipulate only for purposes of this Section represents the consumer injury alleged in the
Complaint), less any payments previously made pursuant to this Section, plus interest computed
from the date of entry of this Order.

VIIL
ADDITIONAL MONETARY PROVISIONS
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A. Settling Defendants relinquish dominion and all legal and equitable right, title, and
interest in all assets transferred pursuant to this Order and may not seek the return of any assets.

B. The facts alleged in the Complaint will be taken. as true, without further proof; in

"any subsequent civil litigation by or on behalf of the Commission in a proceeding to enforce its
rights to any payment or monetary judgment pursuant to this Order, such as a nondischargeability
complaint in any bankruptcy case.

X The facts alleged in the Complaint establish all elements necessary to sustain an

action by the Commission pursuant to Section 523(a)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.
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§ 523(a)(2)(A), and this Order will have collateral estoppel effect for such purposes.

D. Settling Defendants acknowledge that their Taxpayer Identification Numbers
(Social Security Numbers or Employer Identification Numbers), which Settling Defendants
previously submitted to the Commission, may be used for collecting and reporting on any
delinquent amount arising out of this Order, in accordance with 31 U.S.C. §7701.

E. All money paid to the Commission pursuant to this Order may be deposited into a
fund administered by the Commission or its designee to be used for equitable relief, including
consumer redress and any attendant expenses for the administration of any redress fund. Ifa
representative of the Commission decides that direct redress to consumers is wholly or partially
impracticable or money remains after redress is completed, the Commission may apply any
remaining money for such other equitable relief (including consumer information remedies) as it
determines to be reasonably related to Settling Defendants’ practices alleged in the Complaint.
Any money not used for such equitable relief is to be deposited to the U.S. Treasury as
disgorgement. Settling Defendants have no right to challenge any actions the Commission or its
representatives may take pursuant to this Subsection.

VIIL
CUSTOMER INFORMATION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants, Settling Defendants’ officers,
agents, employees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any
of them, who receive actual notice of this Order, are permanently restrained and enjoined from
directly or indirectly:

A.  Failing to provide sufficient customer information to enable the Commission to
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efficiently administer consumer redress. If a representative of the Commission requests in
writing any information related to redress, Settling Defendants must provide it, in the form
prescribed by the Commission, within 14 days; and

B. Disclosing, using, or benefitting from customer information, including the name,
address, telephone number, email address, social security number, other identifying information,
or any data that enables access to a customer’s account (including a credit card, bank account, or
other financial account), that any Settling Defendant obtained prior to entry of this Order; and

C. Failing to destroy such customer information in all forms in their possession,
custody; or control within 30 days after receipt of written direction to do so from a representative
of the Commission. |

Provided, however, that customer information need not be disposed of, and may be
disclosed, to the extent requested by a government agency or required by law, regulation, or court
order.

IX.
COOPERATION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Seftling Defendants must fully cooperate with
representatives of the Commission in this case and in any investigation related to or associated
with the transactions or the occurrences that are the subject of the Complaint. Settling
Defendants must provide truthful and complete information, evidence, and testimony. Individual
Defendants must appear for interviews, discovery, hearings, trials, and any other proceedings that
a Commission representative may reasonably request upon 5 days written notice, or other

reasonable notice, at such places and times as a Commission representative may designate,
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without the service of a subpoena.
X.
OiIDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants obtain acknowledgments of receipt
of this Order:

A Each Settling Defendant, within 7 days of entry of this Order, must submit to the
Commission an acknowledgment of receipt of this Order sworn under penalty of perjury.

B. For 10 years after entry of this Order, each Individual Defendant for any business
that such Defendant, individually or collectively with any other Defendants, is the majority owner
or controls directly or indirectly, and each Corporate Defendant, must deliver a copy of this Order
to: (1) all principals, officers, directors, and LLC managers and members; (2) all employees,
agents, and representatives who participate in conduct related to the subject matter of the Order;
and (3) any business entity resulting from any change in structure as set forth in the Section titled
Compliance Reporting. Delivery must occur within 7 days of entry of this Order for current
personnel. For all others, delivery must cccur before they assume their responsibilities.

C. From each individual or entity to which a Settling Defendant delivered a copy of
this Order, that Settling Defendant must obtain, within 30 days, a signed and dated

acknowledgment of receipt of this Order.

XI.
COMPLIANCE REPORTING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants make timely submissions to the
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Commission:
A.‘ One year after entry of this Order, each Settling Defendant must submit a
compliance report, sworn under penalty of perjury:

I. Each Settling Defendant must: (&) identify the primary physical, postal,
and email address and telephone number, as designated points of contact, which representatives of
the Commission may use to communicate with that Settling Defendant; (b) identify all of that
Settling Defendant’s businesses by all of their names, telephone numbers, and physical, postal,
email, and Intemnet addresses; (c) describe the activities of each business, including the goods and
services offered, the means of advertising, marketing, and sales, and the involvement of any other
Defendant (which Individual Defendants must describe if they know or should know due to their
own involvement); (d) describe in detail whether and how that Settling Defendant is in
compliance with each Section of this Order; and (e) provide a copy of each Order
Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to this Order, unless previously submitted to the
Commission.

s Additionally, each Individual Defendant must: (a) identify all telephone
numbers and all physical, postal, email and Internet addresses, including all residences; (b)
identify all business activities, including anf business for which such Individual Defendant
performs services whether as an employee or otherwise and an)} entity in which such Individuul.
Defendant has any ownership interest; and (c) describe in detail such Individual Defendant’s
involvement in each such business, including title, role, responsibilities, participation, authority,
control, and any ownership.

B. For 20 years after entry of this Order, each Settling Defendant must submit a
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compliance notice, sworn under penalty of perjury, within 14 days of any change in the following:

I Each Settling Defendant must report any change in: (2) any designated
point of contact; or (b) the structure of any Corporate Defendant or any entity that such Settling
Defendant has any ownership interest in or controls directly or indirectly that may affect
compliance obligations arising under this Order, including: creation, merger, sale, or dissolution
of the entity or any subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or pfacticcs subject to
this Order.

2 Additionally, each Individual Defendant must report any change in: (a.)
name, including aliases or fictiticus name, or residence address; or (b) title or role in any business
activity, including any business for which such Individual Defendant performs services whether
as an employee or otherwise and any entity in which such Individual Defendant has any
ownership interest, and identify the name, physical address, and any Internet address of the
business or entity.

C. Each Settling Defendant must submit to the Commission notice of the filing of any
bankruptcy petition, insolvency proceeding, or similar proceeding by or against such Settling
Defendant within 14 days of its filing.

D. Any submission to the Commission required by this Order to be sworn under
penalty of perjury must be true and accurate and comply with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, such as by
concluding: “I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America
that the foregoing is true and correct. Executedon: __ ™ and supplying the date, signatory’s
full name, title (if applicable), and signature.

E. Unless otherwise directed by a Commission representative in writing, all
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submissions to the Commission pursuant to this Order must be emailed to DEbrief@ftc.gov or
sent by overnight courier (not the U.S. Postal Service) to: Associate Director for Enforcement,
Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW,
Washington, DC 20580. The subject line must begin: FTC v. Reliable Business Consultants,
LLC, etal.
XII. |
RECORDKEEPING

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants must create certain records for 20
years after entry of the Order, and retain each such record for 5 years. Speciﬁcaljy, the
Corporate Defenda;'\ts and each Individual Defendant for any business that such Defendant,
individually or collectively with any other Defendants, is a majority owner or controls directly or
indirectly, must create and retain the following records:

A. accounting records showing the revenues from all goods or services sold;

B. personnel records showing, for each person providing services, whether as an
employee or otherwise, that person’s: name; addresses; telephone numbers; job title or position;
dates of service; and (if applicable) the reason for termination;

C.  records of all consumer complaints and refund requests, whether received directly
or indirectly, such as through a third party, and any response;

D. all records necessary to demonstrate full compliance with each provision of this
Order, including all submissions to the Commission; and |

E. a copy of each unique contract with any payment processor or lead broker.

XIII.
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COMPLIANCE MONITORING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of monitoring the Settling Defendants’
compliance with this Order, including the financial representations upon which part of the
judgment was suspended and any failure to transfer any assets as required by this Order:

A. Within 14 days of receipt of a written request from a representative of the
Commission, each Settling Defendant must: submit additional compliance reports or other
requested information, which must be sworn under penalty of perjury; appear for depositions; and
produce documents for inspection and copying. The Commission is also authorized to obtain
discovery, without further leave of court, usiﬁg any of the procedures prescribed by Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure 29, 30 (including telephonic depositions), 31, 33, 34, 36, 45, and 69.

B. For matters concerning this Order, the Commission is authorized to communicate
directly with each Settling Defendant. Settling Defendants must permit representatives of the
Commission to interview any employee or other person affiliated with any Settling Defendant
who has agreed to such an interview. The person interviewed may have counsel present.

G The Commission may use all other lawful means, including posing, through its
representatives as consumers, suppliers, or other individuals or entifies. to the Settling Defendants
or any individual or entity affiliated with the Settling Defendants, without the necessity of
identification or prior notice. Nothing in this Order limits the Commission’s lawful use of
compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 49, 57b-1.

D. Upon written request from a representative of the Commission, any consumer
reporting agency must furnish consumer reports concerning Individual Defendants, pursuant to

Section 604(1) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §1681b(a)(1).
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XIV.
RETENTION OF JURISDICTION
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED;that this Court retains jurisdiction of this matter fo;,gurposcs .

r

SO ORDERED this Q8 ¥y of % ,2016
UNT['% STATES 0154m JUDGE
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SO STIPULATED AND AGREED:

FOR PLAINTITF:

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

Zy

Darren H. Lubéfzky

Savvas S. Diacosavvas

Karen V. Goff

Fedcral Trade Commission
Northeast Region

One Bowling Green, Suite 318
New York, NY 10004

Tel: (212) 607-2829

Fax: (212) 607-2822

Email: dlubetzky@fic.gov
Email: sdiacosavvas@ftc.gov
Email: kgoff@ftc.gov

»
-

bt / .

FOR DEFE/nfy/

; i

A s - / 7 /'S
& 1/ .‘-'/{;’/ Date: / /HC'“ 3 ‘/"

Leonard L. Gordon

Venable, L.L.P.

1270 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY 10020

212-370-6252

Lgordon@venable.com

COUNSEL For Reliable Business Consultants, LL.C, Creative Business Setup, LLC, Legal Entity
Providers, LL.C, Power House Data, Tnc., United Business 1010, LLC, Anthony Fiore, Joseph
Governara, and David Merhi
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= ( Date: _ b/ : (4 A
ANTHONY FIO :

Individually and wan officer of Power House Data, Inc.

Date:
JOSEPH GOVERNARA '
Individually and as an officer of Reliable Business Consultants, LLC and United Business 101,
LLC .
. Date:
DAVID MERHI

Individually and as an officer of Creative Business Setup, LLC and Legal Entity Providers, LLC.
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DEFENDANTS:

Date:

. ANTHONY FIORE

Individually and as an officer of Power House Data, Inc.

Date: //'/ Z'-/(

ndividually and as an officer of Reliable Business Consultants, LLC and United Business 101,
LLC -

Date:

DAVID MERHI -
Individually and as an officer of Creative Business Setup, LLC and Legal Entity Providers, LLC.
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DEFENDANTS:

Date:

ANTHONY FIORE
Individuanlly and as an officer of Power House Data, Inc.

Date:

TOSEPH GOVERNARA
Individually and as an officer of Reliable Business Consultants, LLC and Uniled Business 101,

LLC -

—~ O,
%«#/Z{///# Date: f[{ﬂ%t /S

DAVID MERHI
Individually and as an officer of Creative Business Setup, LLC and Legal Entity Providers, LLC.
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Attachment A

ELECTRONIC CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS

e-CFR data is current as of November 19, 20115

Title 16 — Chagpter | — Subchapler C — Part 310

Title 16: Commercial Practices

PART 310—TELEMARKETING SALES RULE 16 CFR PART 310

Contents

§310.1 Scope of regulations In lhis part.

§310.2 Definitions.

§310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or practices.

§310.4 Abusive telemarketing acls or practices.

§310.5 Recordkeeping requirements,

§310.6 Exemptions.

§310.7 Actions by states and private persons.

§310.8 Fee for access to the National Do Not Call Registry.
§310.9 Severahility.

AUTHORITY: 15 U.5.C. 6101-6108.

SOURCE: 75 FR 48518, Aug. 10, 2010, unless otherwise noled.
t Backto Top
§310.1 Scope of regulations in this part.

This part implements the Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act, 15 U.S.C. 6§101-6108, as
amended. ’

t Back to Top
§310.2 Deflnitions.

(a) Acquirer means a business organization, financial institution, or an agent of a business organization or financial
institutlon that has authority from an organization that operates or licenses a credit card system lo authorize merchants to
accept, transmit, or process payment by credit card through the credit card system for money, goods or services, or
anything else of value. '

(b) Attorney General means the chief legal officer of a state.

{c) Billing information means any data that enables any person to access a customer's or donor's account, such as a
credit card, checking, savings, share or similar account, utility bill, mortgage loan account, or debit card.

(d) Caller identification service means a service that allows a telephone subscriber to have the lelephone number,
and, where avallable, name of the calllng party transmitted contemporaneously with the telephone call, and displayed on a
device in or connected to the subscriber's telephone.

(e) Cardholder means a persen lo whom a credit card is issued or who is authorized to use a credit card on behalf of
or in addition lo the person to whom the credit card Is issued.

{f) Chanitable contribution means any donation or gift of money or any other thing of value.
(g9) Commission means the Federal Trade Commlssion.

{h) Credit means the right granted by a creditor o a debtor to defer payment of debt or to incur debt and defer its
payment.

{i) Credit card means any card, plate, coupon book, or other credit device existing for the purpose of abtaining mongy,
property, labor, or services on credit.

http:/fwww.ecfr.gov/egi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce12c22dff2bd 7b42b60db 1620b83d9b&me=tr... 11/23/2015
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{i) Credit card sales draft means any record or evidence of a credil card transaction.

(k) Cradit card system means any method or procedure uSed lo pracess credit card transactions involving credit cards
issued or licensed by the operator of that syslem.

(1) Customer means any person who is or may be required to pay for goods or services offered through telemarketing.
. J

(m) Debt relief service means any program or service‘represented, directly or by implication, to renegoliate, setile, or
in any way aller the terms of payment or other terms of the debt belween a person and one or more unsecured creditors
or debt collectors, Including, but not limited to, a reduction in the balance, Interest rate, or fees owed by a person to an
unsecured creditor or debt collector.

(n) Donor means any person solicited to make a charitable cantribution.
(o) Established business relationship means a relationship between a seller and a consumer based on:

(1) the consumer's purchase, rental, or lease of the seller's goods or services or a financlal transaction between the
consumer and seller, within the eighleen (18) months immediately preceding the dale of a lelemarketing call; or

(2) the consumer's inquiry or application regarding a product or service offered by the seller, within the three (3)
months immediataly preceding the date of a telemarketing call.

(p) Free-lo-pay conversion means, In an offer or agreement to sell or provide any goods or services, a provision under
which a customer recelves a product or service for free for an Initial period and will incur an obligation to pay for the
product or service If he or she does not take affimative action to cancel before the end of that period.

(q) Invesiment opportunily means anything, tangible or intangible, that is offered, offered for sale, sold, or traded
based wholly or in part on representations, either express or implied, about past, present, or future income, profit, or
appreciation.

(r) Material means likely lo affect a person’s choice of, or conduct regarding, goods or services or a charitable
contribution.

(s) Merchant means a person who is authorized under a written contract with an acquirer to honor or accept credit
cards, or lo transmit or process for payment credit card payments, for the purchase of goods or services or a charitable
contribution.

(t) Merchant agreement means a wrilten contract between a merchant and an acquirer to honor or accepl credit
cards, or lo transmit or process for payment credit card payments, for the purchase of goods or services or a charitable
contribution.

(u) Negalive option fealure means, In an offer or agreement {o sell or provide any goods or services, a provision
under which the customer’s silence or failure to take an affirmative action to reject goods or services or to cancel the
agreement Is Interpreted by the seller as acceptance of the offer.

{v) Outbound lelephone call means a telephone call initlated by a lelemarkeler to Induce the purchase of goods or
services or to sollclt a charitable contribution.

(w) Person means any Individual, group, unincorporated associalion, limited or general partnership, corporation, or
other business entity.

(x) Preacquired account informalion means any Information that enables a seller or telemarketer to cause a charge to
be placed agalnst a customer’s or donor's account without obtalning the account number directly from the customer or
donor during the telemarketing transaction pursuant to which the account will be charged.

(y) Prize means anything offered, or purportedly offered, and given, or purportedly given, to a person by chance. For
purposes of this definition, chance exists if a person is guaranteed to receive an item and, at the time of the offer or
purported offer, the telemarketer does not identify the specific item that the person will receive.

(z) Priza promolion means:

{1) A sweepstakes or other game of chance; or

(2) An oral or written express or implied representalion that a person has won, has been selected lo receive, or may
be eligible to receive a prize or purporied prize.

(aa) Seller means any person who, in conneclion with a telemarketing transaction, provides, offers lo provide, or
arranges for others o provide goods or services to the customer in exchange for consideralion,

(bb) Stale means any state of the United States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the Northern Mariana Islands,
and any lerrilory or possession of the United States.
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(cc) Telemarketer means any person who, in connection with telemarketing, Initiates or receives lelephone calls to or
from a customer or donor. '

(dd) Telemarketing means a plan, program, or campaign which is conducled lo Induce the purchase of goods or
services or a charitable contribution, by use of one or more telephones and which involves more than one interstate
telephone call, The term does not include the solicitation of sales through the mailing of a catalog which: contains 2 written
description or lllustration of the goods or services offered for sale; Includes the business address of the seller; includes -
multiple pages of written material or illustrations; and has been issued not less frequently than once a year, when the
person making the solicitation does not solicit customers by telephone but only recelves calls initiated by customers In
response to the catalog and during those calls takes arders only without further solicitation. For purposes of the previous
sentence, the lerm “further sollcitation” does not include providing the cuslomer with information about, or attempting to
sell, any other item Included In the same calalog which prompted the customer's call or in a substantially similar catalog.

(ee) Upselling means soliciting the purchase of goods or services following an initial transactlon during a single
telephone call. The upsell Is a separate telemarketing transaction, not a continuation of the Initial transaction. An “external
upsell’ Is a solicitation made by or on behalf of a selier different from the sefler in the initial transaction, regardiess of
whether the inltial transaction and the subsequent solicitation are made by the same telemarketer. An “internal upsell” is a
salicitation made by or on behalf of the same seller as in the initial ransaction, regardless of whether the initial transaction
and subseguent solicitation are made by the same lelemarketer.

4 Back to Top
§310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or practices.

(a) Prohibited deceptive telemarkeling acts or practices. itIs a deceptive lelemarketing act or practice and a violation
of this Rule for any seller or telerarketer to engage in the following conduct:

(1) Before a customer consents to pay®™ far gaods or services offered, falling to disclose truthfully, in a clear and
consplcuous manner, the following material Information:

839 When a sellar or telemarkeler uses, or directs a customer lo use, a caurier to transport payment, the seller or lelemarkeler
must make the disclosures required by §310.3(a)(1) before sending a courier to pick up payment or authorizatlon far payment, or
directing a custormner lo have a courler plck up payment or authorization for paymenl. In he case of debt rellef services, Ihe seller or
telemarkeler must make the disclosures required by §310.3(a){1) before the consumer enrolls in an offered program.

(1) The total costs lo purchase, receive, or use, and the quantity of, any goods or services that are the subject of the
sales offer;®® '

%0 For offers of consumer credil products subject to the Truth in Lendlhg Act, 15 U.S.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
226, compliance with the disclosure requirements under the Truth in Lending Act and Regulation Z shall constitute compliance with
§310.3(a){1){}) of this Rule. .

(1) All material restrictions, Ilmitations, or conditions to purchase, receive, or use the goads or services that are the
subject of the sales offer;

(7ii) If the seller has a policy of not making refunds, canceliations, exchanges, or repurchases, a statement informing
the customer that this Is the seller's pollcy; or, if the seller or telemarketer makes a representation about a refund,
cancellation, exchange, or repurchase policy, a stalement of all material terms and conditions of such policy;

(iv) In any prize promotion, the odds of being able to receive the prize, and, if the odds are not calculable in advance,
the factors used in calculating the odds; that no purchase or payment is required to win a prize or to participate in a prize
promotion and that any purchase or payment will not increase the person's chances of winning; and the no-purchase/no-
payment method of participating In the prize promolion with either Instructions on how to participate or an address or local
or lolfree telephone number to which customers may write or call for information on how to participate;

{v) All material cosls or conditions to recelve or redeem a prize that is the subject of the prize promolion;

(vi) In the sale of any goods or services represented to protect, insure, or otherwise limit a customer's liability In the
event of unauthorized use of the cuslomer's credit card, the limits on a cardholder’s liability for unauthorized use of a credit
card pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 1643;

(vii) If the offer includes a negative oplion feature, all malerial terms and conditions of the negative oplion feature,
including, but not limited to, the fact that the customer’s account will be charged unless the customer lakes an affirmative
action to avoid the chargea(s), the dale(s) the charge(s) will be submitted for payment, and the specific steps the customer
must take to avold the charge(s); and

- (vili) In the sale of any debt relief service:
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(A} the amounl of lime necessary to achieve the represented resulls, and to the exlent that the servicf.- may ir}t:lude a
setlement offer to any of the customer's creditars or debt collectors, the time by which the debt rellef service provider will

make a bona fide setllement offer to each of them;

(B) to the extent thal the service may Include a settlement offer to any of the customer's creditors or debt collectors,
the amount of money or the percentage of each outstanding debt that the customer must accumulate before the debt relief
service provider will make a bona fide settlement offer to each of them;

(C) to the extent that any aspect of the debt relief service relles upon or results in the customer's failure to make
timely payments to creditors or debt collectors, that the use of the debt relief service will likely adversely affect the
customer's creditworthiness, may result in the customer being subject to collections or sued by creditors or debt collectars,
and may Increase the amount of money the customer owes due to the accrual of fees and interest; and

(D) to the extent that the debt relief service requests or requires the customer to place funds in an account at an
insured financlal Institution, that the customer owns the funds held In the account, the customer may withdraw from the
deblt relief service at any time without penalty, and, If the customer withdraws, the customer must receive all funds in the
account, other than funds eamed by the debt relief service in compllance with §310.4(a)(5)(1)(A) through (C).

(2) Misrepresenting, direclly or by implication, in the sale of goods ar services any of the following materiai
information:

(i) The tolal casts lo purchase, receive, or use, and the quantily of, any goods or services that are the subject of a
sales offer; ‘

(Ii} Any material restriction, limitation, or condition to purchase, receive, or use éum:ls or services that are lhe subject
of a sales offer;

(i) Any material aspect of the performance, efficacy, nature, or central characteristics of goods or services that are
the subject of a sales offer;

(iv) Any materlal aspect of the nature or terms of the seller's refund, cancellation, exchange, or repurchase policies;

(v) Any material aspect of a prize promotion Including, but not limited o, the odds of belng able to recelve a prize, the
nature or value of a prize, or that a purchase or payment s required to win a prize or to particlpate In a prize promotion;

(vl) Any material aspect of an investment opportunity including, but not limited to, risk, liquidity, eammings potential, or
profitabillty;

(vil) A seller's or telemarketer's affillation with, or endorsement or sponsorship by, any person or government entity;

(vili) That any customer needs offered goods or services to provide protections a customer already has pursuant to 15
U.5.C. 1643;

(k) Any material aspect of a negative option feature including, but not limited to, the fact that the customer’s account
will be charged unless the cuslomer takes an affirnative aclion to avold the charge(s), the date(s) the charge(s) will be
submitted for payment, and the specific steps the customer must take to aveid the charge(s); or

{x) Any material aspect of any debt rellef service, including, but not limited to, the amount of money or the percentage
of the debt amount thal a cuslomer may save by using such service; the amount of time necessary lo achleve the
represenled resulls; the amount of money or the percentage of each oulstanding debt that the customer must accumulate
before the provider of the debl relief service will Initiate attempts with the customer’s creditors or debt collectors or make a
baona fide offer to negotiale, setlle, or modify the terms of the customer’s debt; the effect of the service on a customer's
creditworthiness; the effect of the sarvice on collection efforts of the customer’s creditors or debt collectars; the percentage
or number of customers who attaln the represented results; and whether a debt relief service is offered or provided by a
non-profit entity.

(3) Causing billing information to be submitted for payment, or collecting or attempting to collect payment for goods or
services or a charitable contribution, directly or indirectly, without the customer's or donor's express verifiable
authorization, except when the methad of payment used is a credit card subject to protections of the Truth in Lending Act
and Regulation Z,%" or a deblt card subject to the protections of the Electronic Fund Transfer Act and Regulation E.%2
Such authorization shall be deemed verifiable If any of the following means Is employed: ,

587 Tryuth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR part 226.
&2 Elaciranic Fund Transfer Act, 15 U.S.C. 1693 ef seq., and Regulalion E, 12 CFR part 205.
(i) Express written authorization by the customer or donor, which includes the customer's or donor's signature;*»

553 Eor purposes of this Rule, the term “signalure” shall include an elecironic or digilal form of signature, to the extent that such
form of signalure Is recognized as a valid signature under applicable federal law or state contract law.
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() Express oral authorization which Is audio-recorded and made available upen request lo the customer or donor,
and the customer's or donor's bank or ather billing entity, and which evidences clearly both the customer’s or donor's
authorization of payment for the goods or senvieas or charitable contribution that are the subject of the telemarketing
transaction and the customer's or donor's receipt of zli of the following information: '

(A) The number of debits, charges, or payments (if more than one);

(B) The date(s) the debil(s), charge(s), or payment(s) will be submitted for payment;
(C) The amounl(s) of the debil(s), charge(s), or paymenl(s),

(D) The customer’s or donor’s name;

(E) The customer's or donor's bllling information, identified with sufficient specificity such that the customer or donor
understands what account will be used to collect payment for the goods or services or charitable contribution that are the
subject of the lelemarketing transaction;

(F) A telephone number for customer or donor inquiry that is answered during normal business hours; and
(G) The date of the customer's or donor's oral authorization; or

(llf) Written confirmation of the ransaction, identified in a clear and consplcuous manner as such on the outside of the
envelope, sent to the customer or donor via first class mail prior to the submission for payment of the customer's or
donor's billing Information, and that includes all of the information contained In §§310.3(a)(3)(il)(A)-(G) and a clear and
conspicuous statement of the procedures by which the customer or donor can obtain a refund from the seller or
telemarketer or charitable organization In the event the confirnation Is inaccurate; provided, however, that this means of
authorizatlon shall not be deemed verifiable In Instances in which goods or services are offered In a transaction involving a
free-to-pay conversion and preacquired account information.

(4) Making a false or misleading statement to induce any person to pay for goods or services or to induce a charilable
contribution.

(b) Assisling and facilitating. It is a deceptive lelemarketing act or practice and a violation of this Rule for a parson to
provide substantial assistance or support to any seller or telemarketer when that person knows or consclously avoids
knowing that the seller or telemarketer is engaged In any act or practice that violates §§310.3(a), (c) or (d), or §310.4 of
this Rule.

(¢) Cradit card laundering. Except as expressly permilied by the applicable credit card system, it Is a deceptive
telemarkeling act or practice and a violation of this Rule for:

(1) A merchant to present to or deposit into, or cause another to present to or deposit Into, the credit card system for
payment, a credit card sales draft generated by a telemarketing transaction that is not the result of a telemarketing credit
card transaclion between the cardholder and the merchant;

(2) Any person to employ, solicit, or otherwise cause a merchant, or an employee, representative, or agent of the
merchanl, to present to or deposit into the credit card system for payment, a credit card sales draft generated by a
telemarketing transaction that Is not the resuit of a telemarketing credlt card transaction between the cardholder and the
merchant; or

(3) Any person to obtain access to the credit card system through the use of a business relationship or an affiliation
with a merchant, when such access is not authorized by the merchant agreement or the applicable credit card system.

(d) Prohibited deceptive acls or praclices in the soficitation of charitable contributions. It is a fraudulent charitable
solicitation, a deceptive telemarketing act or practice, and a violation of this Rule for any telemarketer soliciting charitable
contributions lo misrepresent, directly or by implication, any of the following material information:

(1) The nature, purpose, or mission of any entity on behalf of which a charitable contribution Is being requested;

(2) That any charilable contribution Is tax deductible In whole or in part;

(3) The purpose for which any charitable contribution will be used;

(4) The percentage or amount of any charitable contribution that will go to a charitable organization or to any
particular charllable program;

(5) Any material aspect of a prize promotion Including, but not limited to: the odds of being able to receive a prize; the
nature or value of a prize; or that a charitable contribution is required to win a prize or to participate in a prize promotion; or

(8) A charltable organization's or telemarketer’s affiliation with, or endorsement or sponsorship by, any person or
government entity.
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+ Backto Top

§310.4 Abuslve telemarketing acts or practices.

(a) Abusive conduct generally. It is an abusive telemarketing act or practice and a violatlon of this Rule for any seller
or lelemarkeler lo engage In the following conduct

(1) Threals, intimidation, or the use of profane or obscene language;

(2) Requesting or recelving payment of any fee or consideration for goods or services represenied o remove
dercgalory informalion from, or Improve, a person's credit history, credit record, or credit rating until:

(i) The time frame In which the seller has represented all of the goods or services will be provided to that person ha
explred; and _

(1) The seller has provided the person with documentation in the form of a consumer report from a consumer
reporting agency demonstrating that the promised resulls have been achieved, such report having been issued more than
six months after the resuils were achleved. Nothing in this Rule should be construed to affect the requirement in the Fair
Credit Reporting Act, 15 L1.5.C. 1681, that a consumer report may only be obtained for a specified permissible purpose;

(3) Requesling or receiving payment of any fee or consideration from a person for goods or services represented to
recover or otherwlise assist in the return of money or any other item of value pald for by, or promised lo, that person ina
previous telemarketing transaction, until seven (7) business days after such money or other item Is delivered to that
person. This provision shall not apply to gocds or services provided to a person by a licensed attorey;

(4) Requesting or recelving payment of any fee or consideration in advance of oblalning a joan or other extension of
credit when the seller or telemarkeler has guaranteed or represented a high likelihood of success In obtaining or arranging
a loan.or other extension of credit for a person; /

(5X1) Requesting or recelving payment of any fee or consideration for any debt relief service unlil and unless:

(A) The seller or telemarkeler has renegoliated, seltled, reduced, or otherwise altered the lerms of at leasl one debt
pursuant to a settlement agreement, debt management plan, or other such valld contractual agreement executed by the
customer,

(B) The cuslomer has made at least one payment pursuant to that setilement agreement, debt management pian, or
other valld contractual agreement between the customer and the creditor or debl collector; and

(C) To the extent that debls enrolled in a service are renegoliated, seltied, reduced, or clherwise altered individually,
the fee or conslderalion either:

(1) Bears the same proportional relationship to the lotal fee for renegoliating, settling, reducing, or altering the terms
of the entire debt balance as the indlyidual debt amount bears to the entire debt amount. The Individual debt amount and
the entire debt amount are those owed al the time the debt was enrolled in the service; or

(2) Is a percentage of the amount saved as a result of the renegotiation, settlement, reduclion, or alleration. The
percentage charged cannol change from one individual debt to another. The amount saved Is the difference between the
amount owed at the lime the debt was enrolled in the service and the amount aclually pald to satisfy the debt.

(if) Nothing in §310.4(a)(5)(l) prohibits requesting or requiring the customer 1o place funds in an account lo be used for
the debt rellef provider's fees and for payments to creditors or debt collectors in connection with the renegotiation,
settlement, reduction, or other alleration of the lerms of payment or other terms of a debt, provided that:

(A) The funds are held In an account at an insured financlal institution;
(8) The customer owns the funds held in the account and Is pald accrued inlerest on the account, If any;
(C) The entity adminlstering the account Is not owned or controlled by, or In any way affiliated with, the debt relief

(D) The entity administering the account does not give or accept any money or other compensation in exchange for
referrals of business Involving the debt rellef service; and

(E) The customer may withdraw from the debt relief service at any time without penalty, and must receive all funds in
the account, other than funds earned by the debt relief service in compliance with §310.4(a)(5)(I)(A) through (C), within
seven (7) business days of the customer's request.

(6) Disclosing or receiving, for conslderation, unencrypled consumer account numbers for use in lelemarketing;

provided, however, that this paragraph shali not apply to the disclosure or receipt of a customer’s or donor’s billing
information to process a payment for goods or services or a charitable contribulion pursuant to a transaction;
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(7) Causing billing information to be submitted for payment, directly or indirectly, without the exprass informed consent
of the customer or donar. In any lelemarketing transaction, the seller or lelemarkeler must obtain the express informed
consent of the customer or donor to be charged for the goods or services or charitable conlribution and to be charged
usling the identified account. In any lelemarketing transaction Involving preacquired account information, the requirements
in paragraphs (a)(7)(i) through (il) of this section must be met to evidence express informed consent.

(I} In any telemarketing transaction Involving preacquired account information and a free-to-pay conversion feature,
the seller or telemarketer muskt

(A) Obtain from the customer, at a minimum, the last four (4) digits of the accounl number to be charged;

(B) Obtaln from the customer his or her express agreement to be charged for the goods or services and to be charged
using the account number pursuant to paragraph (a){7)(i)(A) of this sectlon; and,

(C) Make and maintain an audio recording of the enlire lelemarketing transaction.

(ii) In any other telemarketing transaction involving preacquired account Information not described In paragraph (a)(7)
(1) of this section, the seller or telemarketer must

(A) At a minimum, identify the account to be charged with sufficient specificity for the customer or donor to understand
what account will be charged; and

(B) Obtain from the customer or donor his or her express agreement to be charged for the goods or services and to
- be charged using the account number Identified pursuant to paragraph (a){7)(il)(A) of this section; or

(8) Falling lo transmit or cause to be lransmitted the telephone number, and, when made available by the
lelemarketer's carrier, the name of the telemarketer, to any caller identification service in use by a reciplent of a
telemarketing call; provided that it shall not be a violation to substitute (for the name and phone number used in, or billed
for, making the call) the name of the seller or charitable organization on behalf of which a telemarketing call Is placed, and
the seller’s or charitable organization's cuslomer or donor service telephene number, which is answered during regular
business hours,

{b) Pattern of calls. (1) It Is an abuslive lelemarketing act or practice and a violation of this Rule for a telemarketer to
engage In, or for a seller lo cause a telemarketer to engage in, the following conduct:

() Causing any telephone lo ring, or engaging any person In telephone conversation, repeatedly or continuously with
intent to annoy, abuse, or harass any person at the called number;

(ii) Denying or interfering in any way, directly or indirectly, with a person's right to be placed on any reglstry of names
andlor telephone numbers of persons who do not wish to recelve cuthound telephone calls established to comply with
§310.4(b)(1)(iii);

(1il Inltiating any outbound telephone call lo a person when:

(A) That person previously has stated that he or she does not wish lo receive an outbound telephone call made by or
on behalf of the seller whose goods or services are being offered or made on behalf of the charilable organization for
which a charitable contribution is belng solicited; or

(B) That person's telephone number Is on the “do-not-call” registry, maintained by the Commission, of persons who do
not wish lo recelve oulbound telephone calls to induce the purchase of goods or services unless the seller:

(i) Has obtalned the express agreemant, In writing, of such person to place calls to that person, Such written
agreement shall clearly evidence such person’s authorization that calls made by or on behalf of a specific party may be
placad to that person, and shall include the lelephone number to which the calls may be placed and the signature®™* of
that person; or

54 £or purposes of this Rule, the term “signature” shall include an electronic or digital form of signature, to the extent that such
form of signature Is recognized as a valld signature under applicable federal law or stale coniracl law.

(I} Has an established business relalionship with such person, and that person has not stated that he or she does not
wish to receive oulbound telephone calls under paragraph (b){1){iil)(A) of this section; or

(iv) Abandoning any outbound lelephone call. An cutbound telephone call Is "abandoned” under this section if a
person answers it and the telemarketer does not connecl the call fo a sales representalive within two (2) seconds of the

person's completed greeting.

{v) Initiating any outbound telephone call thal delivers a prerecorded message, other than a prerecorded message
permitted for compliance with the call abandonment safe harbor in §310.4(b)(4)(iii), unless:
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(A) In any such call ta Induce the purchase of any good or service, the seller has obtalned from the recipient of the
call an express agreement, in writing, that

(1) The selier obtained only afier a ciear ana conspicucus WISCIoSUre thal e purpose of e agreement IS 1o auinorize
the seller lo place prerecorded calls to such person;

(Il) The selier obtained without requiring, directly or indirectly, that the agreement be executed as a condition of
purchasing any good or service;

(iif) Evidences the willingness of the recipient of the call to receive calls thal deliver prerecorded messages by or on
behalf of a specific seller; and

(iv) Includes such person's telephone number and signature;®* and

85 For purposes of this Rule, Ihe term “signalure” shall include an electronic or dighal form of signalure, to lhe extent that such
form of signature is recognized as a valld signalure under applicable federal law or slate conlract law.

(B) In any such call to induce the purchase of any good or service, or to induce a charitable contribution from a
member of, or pravious donor to, a non-profit charitable organization on whose behalf lhe call is made, the seller or
telemarketer:

() Allows the lelephone to ring for at least fifteen (15) seconds or four (4) rings before disconnecting an unanswered
call; and

(11) Within two (2) seconds after the completed greeting of the person called, plays a prerecorded message that
promptly provides the disclosures required by §310.4(d) or (e), followed immediately by a disclosure of one or both of the
following:

(A) Inmsmidamlmalcuwdbeansweredhpersonbyamnsumer. that the persan called can use an
automated Inleractive voice and/or keypress-activated opt-out mechanism to assert a Do Not Call request pursuant to
§310.4(b)(1)(Ii)(A) at any time during the message. The mechanism must ;

(1) Automatically add the number called o the seller’s entity-specific Do Not Call list;
(2) Once invoked, immedlately disconnect the call; and
(3) Be available for use at any time during the message; and

(B) In the case of a call that could be answered by an answering machine or volcemall service, that the person called
can use a tol-free telephone number to assert a Do Not Call request pursuant to §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A). The number provided
must connect directly to an automated interactive voice or keypress-activated opt-out mechanism that

(1) Automatically adda; the number called to the seller’s entity-specific Do Not Call list;

(2) Immediately thereafter dlsco;'mecls the call; and

(3) Is accassible at any time throughout the duration of the lelemarketing campalgn; and

(i) Complies with all other requirements of this part and other applicable federal and state laws.

(C) Any call that complies with all applicable requirements of this paragraph (v) shall not be deemed to violate §310.4
(B)(1)(IV) of this part.

(D) This paragraph (v) shall not apply to any outbound telephone call lhat delivers a prerecorded healthcare message
made by, or on behalf of, a covered enfily or its business assoclate, as those terms are defined in the HIPAA Privacy Rule,
45 CFR 160.103. )

(2) Itis an abusive lelemarketing act or praclice and a violation of this Rule for any person lo sell, rent, lease,
purchase, or use any list established to comply with §310.4(b){1){ill){A), or malntalned by lhe Commission pursuant lo

§310.4(b){1)(ii)(B), for any purpose except compliance with the provisions of this Rule or olherwise to prevent telephone
calls to telephane numbers on such lists.

(3) A seller or telemarkeler will not be liable for violating §310.4(b)(1)(if) and (lij) if it can demonstrate that, as part of
the seller's or telemarketer's routine business practice:

(i) It has establlshed and implemented written procedures to comply with §310.4(b)(1)(iT) and (ili);

(i) Ithas trained its personnel, and any entity assisting in ils compliance, in the procedures eslablished pursuant to
§310.4(b)(3)(1);
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(iii) The seller, or a telemarketer or ancther person acting on behalf of the seller or charitable organization, has
maintained and recorded a list of telephone numbers the seller or charitable organization may not contact, in compliance
with §310.4(b)(1)INAY

(Iv) The seller or a telemarketer uses a process lo prevent telemarketing to any telephone number on any list
established pursuant to §310.4(b)(3)(iii) or 310.4(b)(1)(ili)(B), employing a version of the “do-not-call” registry obtained
from the Commissfon no more than thirty-one (31) days prior to the date any call Is made, and maintalns records
documenting this process;

(v) The sellerora leiamameter or another person acting on behalf of the seller or charitable nrganlzaﬂon, monitors
and enforces compliance with the procedures established pursuant to §310.4(b)(3)(i); and

(vi) Any subsequent call omerwlse violating §310.4(b){1)(i!) or (ill) Is the result of error.
(4) A seller or lelemarketer wili not be liable for violating §310.4(b){1)(iv) if:

() The seller ar telemarketer employs technology that ensures abandonment of no more than three (3) percent of all
calls answered by a person, measurad over the duration of a single calling campaign, if less than 30 days, or separately
over each successive 30-day period or portion thereof that the campaign continues.

(i) The seller or telemarketer, for each lelemarketing call placed, allows the telephone to ring for at least fifteen (15)
seconds or four (4) rings before disconnecting an unanswered call;

(iil) Whenever a sales representativa Is not avallable to speak with the person answering the call within two (2)
seconds after the person's compleled greeting, the seller or telemarketer promplly plays a recorded message that slates

the name and telephone number of the seller on whose behalf the call was placed®®; and

558 This provision does not affect any seller’s or lelemarketer's obligation lo comply with relevant state and federal laws,
Including but not limiled lo lhe TCPA, 47 U.S.C. 227, and 47 CFR parl 64.1200.

(iv] The seller or telamarketer. In accordance with §310.5(b)-(d), retalns records establishing compliance with §310.4
(B)(4)(1)-(1h). .

(c) Calling lime restriclions. Without the prior cansent of a person, Itls an abusive telemarketing act or praclice and a
violation of this Rule for a telemarketer to engage in outbound lelephone calls to a person's residence at any time other
than between 8:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. local lime at the called person's location.

(d) Required oral disclosures in the sale of goods or services. It is an abusive lelemarketing act or praclice and a
violation of this Rule for a telemarketer in an outbound telephone call or nternal or external upsell to induce the purchase
of goods or services to fall to disclose truthfully, promptly, and in a clear and conspicuous manner lo the person recelving
the call, the following information:

(1) The identity of the seller;

(2) That the purpose of the call is to sell goods or services;

(3) The nature of the goods or services; and _

(4) That no purchase or payment Is necessary to be able to win a prize or participate in a prize promotion if a prize
promotion is offered and that any purchase or payment will not Increase the person's chances of winning. This disclosure
must be made before or in conjunction with the description of the prize to the person called. If requested by thal person,
the telemarketer must disclose the no-purchase/no-payment entry method for the prize promotion; provided, however,
that, in any Internal upsell for the sale of goods or services, the seller or telemarketer must provide the disclosures listed in

this section only to the extent that the Information In the upsell differs from the disclosures provided in the initial
telemarketing transaction.

(e) Required oral disclosures in charilable solicitations. It is an abuslive telemarketing act or practice and a violation of
this Rule for a telemarketer, In an oulbound lelephone call to induce a charitable contribution, to fail to disclose truthfully,
promptly, and in a clear and consplcuous manner to the person receiving the call, the following information:

(1) The Identity of the charitable organization on behalf of which the request is being made; and
(2) That the purpose of the call is to solicit a charitable contribution.

{75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010, as amended al 76 FR 58716, Sepl. 22, 2011]
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§310.5 Recordkeeping requirements.
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(a) Any seller or telemarketer shall keep, for a period of 24 months from the date the record is produced, the following
records relating to its lelemarketing aclivilies:

(1) All substantially diiferent advertising, brochures, telemarketing scripts, and promotional materials;

{2) The name and last known address of each prize recipient and the prize awarded for prizes that are represented,
directly or by implication, to have a value of $25.00 or more;

(3) The name and last known address of each customer, the goods or services purchased, the date such goods or
services were shipped or provided, and the amount paid by the customer for the goods or services;®’

857 Eor offers of consumer credit products subject to the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
226, compliance with the recordkeeping requirements under the Truth In Lending Acl, and Regulation Z, shall constitule compliance
with §310.5(a)(3) of this Rule.

(4) The name, any fictitious name used, the last known home address and telephone number, and the job title(s) for
all current and former employees directly involved in telephone sales or solicitations; provided, however, that if the seller
or lelemarketer permits fictitious names to be used by employees, each fictitious name must be traceable to only one
specific employee; and

(5) All verifiable authorizations or records of express informed consent or express agreement required to be provided
or received under this Rule.

(b) A seller or telemarketer may keep the records required by §310.5(a) In any form, and in the same manner, format,
or place as they keep such records In the ordinary course of business. Fallure lo keep all records required by §310.5(a)
shall be a violatlon of this Rule.

(c) The seller and the telemarketer calling on behalf of the seller may, by wrilten agreement, allocate responsibility
between themselves for the recordkeepling required by this Section. When a seller and telemarketer have entered inlo
such an agreement, the terms of that agreement shall govemn, and the seller or lelemarkeler, as the case may be, need
not keep records that duplicate those of the other. If the agreement Is unclear as to who must maintain any required record
(s), orif no such agreement exists, the seller shall be responsible for complying with §§310.5(a)(1)-{3) and (5); the
telemarketer shall be responsible for complying with §310.5(a)(4).

(d) In the event of any dissolution or terminatlon of the seller's or telemarketer's business, the principal of that seller or
telemarketer shall malntain all records as required under this section. In the event of any sale, assignment, or other
chanae In ownership of the seller's or telemarketer's business, the successor business shall maintain all records required
under thls section.

t Back to Top
§310.6 Exemptions.

(a) Solicitations to induce charitable contributions via outbound lelephone calls are not covered by §310.4(b)(1)(ill)(B)
of this Rule.

(b) The following acts or practices are exempt from this Rule:

(1) The sale of pay-per-call services subject to the Commission's Rule entitled “Trade Regulation Rule Pursuant to the
Telephone Disclosure and Dispute Resolution Act of 1992, 16 CFR part 308, provided, however, that this exemption does
not apply to the requirements of §§310.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b), and (c);

{2) The sale of franchises subject to the Commission's Rule entitled “Disclosure Requirements and Prohibitions
Concerning Franchising,” (“Franchise Rule”) 16 CFR part 436, and the sale of business opportunities subject to the
Commisslon's Rule entitled "Disclosure Requirements and Prohibitions Concerning Business Opportunities,” ("Business
Opportunity Rule®) 16 CFR part 437, provided, however, that this exemption does not apply to the requirements of
§§310.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b), and (c);

(3) Telephone calls in which the sale of goods or services or charitable solicitation is not completed, and payment or
authorization of payment Is not required, until afier a face-to-face sales or donation presentation by the seller or charitable
organization, provided, however, that this exemption does not apply to the requirements of §§310.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b), and
(ch

(4) Telephone calls initiated by a customer or donor that are not the result of any solicitation by a seller, charitable
organization, or telemarketer, provided, however, that this exemption does not apply to any instances of upselling Included
in such telephone calls;

(5) Telephone calls initiated by a customer or donor In response to an advertisement through any medium, other than

direct mail solicitation, provided, however, that this exemptlon does not apply to calls initiated by a customer or donor in
response to an advertisement relating to investment opportunities, debt relief services, business opportunities other than
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business arrangements covered by the Franchise Rule or Business Opportunily Rule, or advertisements Involving goods
or services described in §§310.3(a)(1)(vi) or 310.4(a){2}-{4); or to any instances of upselling included in such telephone
calls;

(6) Telephone calls initiated by a customer or donor in response to a direct mall solicitation, including solicltations via
the U.S. Postal Service, facsimile transmission, electronic mali, and other similar methods of delivery in which a solicitation
is directed to specific address{es) or person(s), that clearly, conspicuously, and truthfully discloses all malerial information
listed in §310.3(a)(1) of this Rule, for any goods or services oifered in the direct mail solicitation, and that contains no
material misrepresentation regarding any ltem contained in §310.3(d) of this Rule for any requested charitable
contribution; provided, however, that this exemption does not apply o calls initiated by a customer In response to a direct
mall solicitation relating to prize promotions, investment opportunities, debl rellef services, business opportunities other
than business arrangements covered by the Franchise Rule or Business Opportunity Rule, or goods or services described
In §§310.3(a)(1)(v) or 310.4(a)(2)-(4); or to any instances of upselling included in such telephone calls; and

(7) Telephone calls between a telemarketer and any business, except calls to induce the relzil sale of nondurable
office or cleaning supplies; provided, however, that §310.4(b)(1)(il)(B) and §310.5 of this Rule shall not apply to sellers or
telemarketers of nondurable office or cleaning supplles.

+ Bacl to Top
§310.7 Actions by states and private persons.

(a) Any attorney general or other officer of a state authorized by the state to bring an actlon under the Telemarketing
and Cansumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act, and any private person who brings an actlon under that Act, shall serve
written notice of Its action on the Commission, if feasible, prior lo its Initiating an action under this Rule. The notice shall be
sent to the Office of the Director, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580,
and shall include a copy of the state's or privale person’s complaint and any other pleadings to be filed with the court. If
prior notice is not feasible, the slate or private person shall serve the Commission with the required notice immediately
upon inslituting its action.”

(b) Nothing contalned In this Section shall prohibit any attorney general or other authorized state official from
proceeding In state court on the basis of an alleged violation of any civil or criminal statute of such state.

t Back to Top
§310.8 Fee for access to the National Do Not Call Registry.

(a) Itis a violation of this Rule for any seller lo initiate, or cause any telemarketer to initiate, an outbound telephone
call to any person whose ielephone number is within a given area code unless such seller, either directly or through
another person, first has paid the annual fee, required by §310.8(c), for access to telephone numbers within that area
code that are Included in the National Do Not Call Registry maintained by the Commission under §310.4{b)(1)(il)(B);
provided, however, lhat such payment Is not necessary if the seller Initiates, or causes a telemarketer lo inlliate, calls
solely to persons pursuant to §§310.4(b)(1)(ii)(B)(i) or (ii), and the seller does not access the National Do Not Call
Reglstry for any other purpose.

(b) ItIs a violation of this Rule for any telemarketer, on behalf of any seller, o Initiate an outbound lelephone cali to
any person whose telephone number is within a given area code unless that seller, elther directly or through anaother
person, first has pald the annual fee, required by §310.8(c), for access to the telephone numbers within that area code that
are Included In the National Do Not Call Registry; provided, however, that such payment Is not necessary If the seller
Initiates, or causes a telemarketer to Inltiate, calls solely lo persons pursuant to §§310.4(b)(1)(In)(B){I} or (il}, and the seller
does not access the National Do Not Call Registry for any other purpose.

(c) The annual fee, which must be paid by any person prior to obtaining access to the Natlonal Do Not Call Reglstry,
Is $60 for each area code of data accessed, up to a maximum of $16,482; provided, however, that there shall be no
charge lo any person for accessing the first five area codes of dala, and provided further, \hat there shall be no charge o
any person engaging in or causing others to engage in outbound telephone calls to consumers and who Is accessing area
codes of data in the National Do Not Call Registry If the person is permitted lo access, but is not required to access, the
National Do Not Call Registry under this Rule, 47 CFR 64.1200, or any other Federal regulation or law. Any person
accessing the Nalional Do Nol Call Registry may not participate in any arrangement to share the cost of accessing the
registry, Including any arrangement with any telemarketer or service provider lo divide the costs to access the registry
among varlous clients of that telemarketer or service provider.

(d) Each person who pays, either directly or through another person, the annual fee set forth in §310.8(c), each
person excepled under §310.8(c) from paying the annual fee, and each person excepted from paying an annual fee under
§310.4(b)(1)(iil)(B), will be provided a unique account number that wiil allow that person o access lhe registry data for lhe
selecled area codes at any time for the twelve month period beginning on the first day of the month in which the person
paid the fee (“lhe annual period”). To obtain access lo additional area codes of dala during the first six months of the
annual period, each person required to pay the fee under §310.8(c) must first pay $60 for each additional area code of
data not Initially selected. To obtain access to zdditional area codes of data during the second six months of the annual
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period, each person required to pay the fee under §310.8(c) must first pay $30 for each additional area code of data not
Initially selected. The payment of the additional fee will permit the person to access the additional area codes of data for

. the remainder of the annval period,

(e) Access to the National Do Not Call Registry is limited lo lelemarketers, sellers, others engaged In or causing
others to engage in telephone calls to consumers, service providers acting on behalf of such persons, and any
government agency that has law enforcement authority. Prior to accessing the National Do Not Call Reglstry, a person
must provide the identifying Information required by the operator of the registry to collect the fee, and must certify, under
penalty of law, that the person is accessing the reglstry solely to compiy with the provisions of this Rule or to otherwise
prevent telephone calls to telephone numbers on the registry. If the person is accessing the registry on behalf of sellers,
that person also must Identify each of the sellers on whose behalf it is accessing the registry, must provide each seller's
unique account number for access to the nalional reglstry, and must certify, under penalty of law, that the sellers will be
using the information gathered from the registry solely to comply with the provisions of this Rule or otherwise to prevent
lelephone calls to telephone numbers on the registry.

[75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010; 75 FR 51934, Aug. 24, 2010, as amended at 77 FR 51687, Aug. 27, 2012; 78 FR 53643, Aug. 30,
2013; 79 FR 51478, Aug. 29, 2014)
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§310.9 Severability.

The provisions of lhls Rule are separate and severable from one another. If any provision Is stayed or determined to
be invalid, itls the Commission's intention that the remalining provisions shall continue in effect.
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